Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Pennines Township Committee
Wednesday, 22nd July, 2020
6.00 pm.
Zoom Meeting

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Minutes - Pennines Township Committee
To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township
Committee held on 17th June 2020.

3-5

6

Presentation - Play Strategy

6 - 15

To consider a presentation from the Director of Neighbourhoods.
7

Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club
Director of Neighbourhoods to report.

Pennines Township Committee Members
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Rina Paolucci
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor John Blundell
Councillor David Bamford
Councillor John Taylor
Councillor Tom Besford
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Alison James – Committee and Constitutional Services Officer
Telephone: 01706 924715
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk

16 - 18

Agenda Item 5
PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Wednesday 17th June 2020
PRESENT: Councillors Davidson, Dearnley, Emsley, Hartley, Hussain, Kelly,
Mir, Paolucci, Blundell, Bamford, Taylor and Besford
OFFICERS: V. White (Neighbourhoods Directorate), A. James and
N. Suleman (Resources Directorate)
Note: As the Chair, Councillor Mir, was experiencing intermittent technical
issues with accessing the Zoom meeting, Councillor Besford chaired the
meeting.
(Councillor Besford in the Chair)
APOLOGIES
33
There were no apologies for absence.
MINUTES
34
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 5th February 2020 be approved
and signed as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
35
There were no declarations of interest.
URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
36
There were no urgent items of business.
PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND
APPOINTMENTS 2020-21
37
The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of
Resources which asked the Township Committee to confirm its delegated
decision making arrangements for the 2020/21 Municipal Year and to appoint
Members to agreed roles including the Chairs, Vice Chairs and substitute
members; and the appointment to other Township Bodies and outside bodies.
Alternatives considered:
The Township Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and
undertake all delegated functions themselves, but that this may have a
detrimental impact on the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with
urgent items of business.
Resolved:

Page 3

1.

That the Sub-Committee structure of the Pennines Township
Committee be confirmed comprising of the Pennines Delegated and
Funding Sub-Committee, established in accordance with the Terms of
Reference for the Sub-Committee as set out in Appendix 1 of the report
be approved;

2.

That all Members of the Pennines Township Committee be appointed
to the Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee and
with the Chair being Councillor Mir and the Vice Chair Councillor
Besford;

3.

That the Regeneration and Facilities Service Group and Highways and
Environmental Management Service Group be retained and all
Members of the Township Committee be appointed to each;

4.

The relevant Ward Councillors be appointed to the following:a) Milnrow, Newhey and Firgrove Area Forum;
b) Littleborough and Wardle Community Meeting;

5.

Councillors Bamford, Davidson, Kelly and Besford be appointed to the
Ellenroad Trust Limited;

6.

That Councillor Hartley be appointed to the Moorend Trust
Management Committee;

7.

That Councillors Bamford, Besford, Blundell, Dearnley, Emsley,
Hartley, Kelly, Paolucci, be appointed to the Pennines Township
Planning Panel;

8.

That Councillor Dearnley be appointed as the Pennines Township
Older Person’s Champion;

9.

That Councillor Davidson be appointed at the Pennines Township
Highways Champion;

Reasons for the decision:
The recommendations were presented as the Council has established and
appointed Township Committees to undertake certain executive and
nonexecutive powers, as set out in the Responsibility for Council Functions in
Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. In addition the Township’s SubCommittee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter detailed
in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take a
decision.
Appointments to the Sub-Committee are made, as far as is possible, in
accordance with the Township Committee’s political balance. The proper
appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the undertaking of

Page 4

delegated functions in accordance with statutory and procedural
requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other Bodies are
required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to respond to
the full range of issues relevant to the Township.
PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW
38
The Township Committee considered a report which presented a
review of the Township revenue and capital expenditure during 2019/20 and
provided options for the allocation of funds for 2020/21.
Members were also requested to consider the Pennines Township Funds
terms and conditions and to agree delegation arrangements concerning
funding decisions.
The Committee considered the changes to the carry forward of funds and
sought clarification on the arrangements for utilising funding for projects if this
was required.
Alternatives Considered:
The Committee could decide whether or not to approve the allocation of funds
to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.
Resolved:
1.

2.

3.
4.
5.
6.

That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end
2019/20 be noted;
That the findings of the review of Township Funds 2019/20 and
evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded be
noted;
That the allocation of Pennines Township Funds to funding
streams in 2020/21 be approved;
That the terms and conditions for Pennines Township revenue
and capital funds for 2020/21, be approved;
That the delegation arrangements for Pennines Township Funds
2020/21 as detailed in the report be approved;
The Committee agrees that any uncommitted/unspent funds be
reallocated to a central revenue or capital funding stream as
appropriate before the end of January 2021, to enable members
to spend/commit all Pennines Township Funds during the
2020/2021 financial year.

Reasons for the Decisions:
Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee. Pennines Township Funds were
allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment,
and which realised the Township’s priorities.

Page 5

Play Area Strategy 2020 - 2030
Why do we need a Strategy?
To move management methods from reacting to
circumstances to a planned and progressive method.

•

To enable Councillors inform the actions of Officers.

•

New s106 legal processes at the Planning Application stage.

•

Everyone pulling together to achieve the shared aims.

Agenda Item 6

Page 6

•

So We Can Move From This to This

Page 7

What Did We Do to Develop a Draft Strategy
Research other Council Play Strategies to find the best model.

•

Agreed a scope for the strategy.

•

Mapped our existing provision.

•

Assessed the quality of every play facility.

Page 8

•

Key Findings
• The Borough has sufficient play provision but there are a few
localised areas of under and over provision.
• Need to tackling immediate safety issues.
Page 9

• Additional Capital and Revenue budget is required to fund any
additional play facilities.
• Provision for families with disabilities requires urgent attention.
• RBH host a number of play areas and if any of these close at
any future stage and if they leave an area of under provision
then the Council will need to resource replacement facilities
and their maintenance. Discussions are ongoing with RBH.

Vision and Objectives
Rochdale Borough Council will develop and manage excellent play
areas for every child in the Borough

• Quality of design to encourage access and inclusion, maximise
play value, attractive to children, innovation.
Page 10

• Good distribution by age / type to across the Borough.
• Communities value and utilise the play facilities to the full.
• Designed to be cost effective to maintain.
• Maximising income from s106, external grants, sponsors etc.
• Effective maintenance regime to ensure safety and information
flow when equipment is out of use for repairs.

Next Steps
•

Consultation with Townships to agree Township specific action
plans within the wider strategy.

•

Township agree actions on any decisions around existing over
and under provision and cross Ward boundary decisions

Page 11

• Adopting the strategy via report to Formal Cabinet
• Ongoing review process with Township / Ward Members so the
action plan for the Township is kept up to date

6.0

Current Provision Assessment

6.1

Assessment of current provision has been undertaken by overlaying a map of the Borough
with the location of play facilities with a 500m radius around Local play areas and 1,000m
around Main play areas and a population heat map. .

6.2

This spatial analysis is then combined with the condition analysis by the independent
inspection and Officer / Member knowledge of gaps in provision by age / type etc to inform
the assessment of current provision.

6.5

Pennines Township Assessment
6.5.1: Wardle & West Littleborough ward is well served by main Play area provision at
Bellfield and Firgrove and with Local play areas along the A58 corridor from
Rochdale to Littleborough at Stonie Heys and Ashbrook Hey Lane (Council) and
Smallbridge and Birch View (RBH) plus Clough Street for Wardle and Aberley Fold
for Shore.
Milnrow and Newhey are served by the Main play area at Milnrow Memorial Park
and outlying play areas at The Hough and Stanneybrook Park (Council) and Cedar
Lane (RBH).
Littleborough Lakeside is well served by the Main play area provision at
Hollingworth Lake and Hare Hill Park with Local play area provision at Smithy
Bridge and Stansfield

Map 3: Pennines Township Play provision map

Page 12

6.5.2 For Wardle and West Littleborough both the Main Play area sites at Belfield and
Firgrove are in good condition and provide a good range of equipment. Local play
areas along the A58 corridor from Rochdale to Littleborough at Stonie Heys and
Ashbrook Hey Lane (Council) plus Smallbridge and Birch View (RBH) is also of
good quality plus and Aberley Fold Local play area is excellent provision for such
a small population located at Shore and could perhaps be described as overprovision given the proximity to Main Play area at Hare Hill Park.
Clough Street in Wardle is adequate but it is recommended for investment in 2-5
years’ time to ensure provision is good going forward. Drainage problems have
been identified which prevent the site being used after wet weather. Works have
been carried out and will be monitored to check effectiveness.
6.5.3 For Milnrow and Newhey the Main play area at Milnrow Memorial Park is in good
condition and offers an excellent range of equipment. Cedar Lane (RBH) is an
adequate local provision for younger children.
Local play provision for Newhey at The Hough (Council) is now excellent after 2019
revamp to provide a new slide, new multi-play unit, new inclusive (flush mounted
roundabout) and wheelchair / pram friendly access paths to all the equipment. The
transformation at The Hough is pictured below:
From This: reactive repairs to individual problems

To This: Whole area forward planning

Page 13

Local play provision West Milnrow at Stanneybrook Park play area (pictured below)
is coming to the end of its life expectancy and investment in the region £30,000 is
required over the next 2 years to replace all the main multiplay unit and springer,
to refurbish the swings and renew safety surfacing.

6.5.4 Littleborough Lakeside Main play area provision at Hollingworth Lake and Hare Hill
Park are both good, as is Local play area provision at Smithy Bridge after new
equipment installed 2018/19. However, Hare Hill junior play area is near the end
of its lifespan and a major overhaul is recommended by 2023.
RBH have noted an interest in closing their play area at Stansfield. A replacement
on Rochdale Council land is recommended. Because this will be an additional play
area to maintain, external funding will need to be sourced for maintenance as well
as capital installation costs.
6.5.5 Disability access and inclusion is variable quality, with some good path access but
no accessible equipment e.g. Hare Hill Park pictured below left where there are
good tarmac access paths but you can see a roundabout which is not flush
mounted so not accessible to wheelchairs. Also pictured below right at Stonie heys
Park where a chicane has been installed discourage children running out in the
road but as well as being ineffectual because of lack of side fencing it also means
prams and wheelchairs have to go across the grass.

6.5.6 Skate / BMX Provision is excellent in Pennines with a good quality steel
construction skate facility at Hare Hill Park and a new excellent quality concrete

Page 14

construction facility at Milnrow Memorial Park. This is a higher level of provision
than elsewhere in the Borough.
6.5.7 MUGA are located at Milnrow Memorial Park and Bellfield (RBH) sites. It would
have been ideal to have one located at Harehill Park for Littleborough but there is
no suitable space in the park.
6.5.8 Outdoor gyms are located at Milnrow Memorial Park and Clough Street in Wardle.
There are also timber construction gyms at Hare Hill Park and Hollingworth Lake
which are in adequate condition but are high maintenance and require investment
of the course of this strategy.
6.5.9 Summary of Pennines Current Provision:
 Compared to the rest of the Borough Play provision is in better condition and
requires less immediate investment to meet standards.
 Wardle & West Littleborough and Milnrow & Newhey wards are both well
served and no investment is required at this stage.
 Littleborough Lakeside is generally good but before the end of this Strategy
major investment will be required at Hare Hill Park toddlers play area.
Assuming RBH go ahead with closure of their Stansfield Play area alternative
Council provision will be required to prevent under-provision.
 Disability access and inclusion requires investment to ensure provision
meets the needs of families with disabilities.
 Skate / BMX provision is excellent.
 MUGA provision is satisfactory.
 Outdoor gym provision is good but timber construction gyms may need
replacing over the next 10 years

7

Township Proposals

7.4

Pennines Proposals:

Ward

Action

Funding

Wardle & W Clough St
Littlborough refurbishment

Play Capital

Milnrow &
Newhey

N/a

None required

Littlborough Hare Hill toddler play
refurbishment
Lakeside

W & WL
L.Lakeside

New Council play
area Stansfield as
RBH close theirs
Revamp timber gyms
Hare Hill Park and
Hollingworth Lake

2020

S106 / Play
Capital
S106

S106

Page 15

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025-30

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item
Report to Pennines Township Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public/Private Document

22 July 2020
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Paul Harris/Faith
Crompton
Public Document

Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

Wardle and Smallbridge Football Club has plans to extend the lower pitch
from a junior size to an adult/open age sized pitch and to improve the
drainage, to Football Association standards. Once planning was approval
the scheme started on site on 18 August 2019. Initial works progressed well
until bad weather made the site unworkable and the project team and
football club agreed to close the site. The decision was made to close the
site by 28 October 2019. All parties agreed the site would close until the
spring of 2020.
The site became live once again on 20 April 2020 with the contractor
working in line with the Government and Public Health England guidelines in
respect of COVID 19. Any ground that had previously been stripped in 2019
had been stockpiled in readiness for future use. As work recommenced and
the remainder of the stripping of the site was completed, a number of
unforeseen elements were becoming evident:




Additional drainage exposed from the top pitch from adjustment to the
embankment would need to be connected to the new drainage formed on
the new lower pitch.
The amount of soil stripped from the lower pitch did not achieve 200mm
depth. Only 75mm could be retained.
The amount of soil stripped from the grazing land area did not achieve
the 400mm expected depth due to poor quality land. Only a depth of
95mm was retained from the full grazing area.

Options
Option 1: Approve the additional funding for the remainder of the 1000 ton
of topsoil to ensure the criteria set by Planning of a 300mm clearance
between the separation barrier and the existing ground is met. The amount
required to meet this criteria is £18,000.

Page 16

Option 2: Do not approve the additional funding for the 1000 ton of topsoil
leaving a shortfall meaning the requirement of a 300mm clearance cannot
be met and the risk of the project remaining incomplete.
Option 3: Look for alternate avenues of funding. The risk being that the site
becomes dormant until funds are found to complete the project.
2.
2.1

3.

Recommendation
It is recommended that option 1 be approved for funding by Pennines
Township to ensure the requirements put forward by the Planning
Environmental Health Senior Officer to achieve the 300mm separation
between the new and old pitch surface is met.
Reason for Recommendation

3.1

To ensure the sufficient funding is made available for the additional
requirement to meet Planning recommendations.

3.2

Remove the risk of any pitch users and to mitigate any health and safety
concerns.

3.3

Option 1 has met the requirement of the Planning Environmental Health
Senior Officer.

3.4

Future maintenance regimes will benefit from the 300mm topsoil above the
separation barrier understanding there should be no impact of disturbance of
waste material.

4.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Consideration given for the allowance of on-site validation of the separation
layer and the testing of all imported topsoil for contaminants, to comply with
a Planning condition in the interest of protecting human health. A cost was
associated with this element of work which put existing contingencies under
pressure. Therefore adding to pressures to the original budget of the works.

4.2

Alternative options were considered such as reducing the 300mm separation
layer, however, not meeting the Planning/human health requirements meant
a number of options had to be disregarded and option 1 was the only viable
approach to completing the works to meet specification.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Additional topsoil required 1000 ton
Pennines Township Budget required

Page 17

£18,000

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Risk of budget shortfall as unforeseen events have meant the availability of
the contingency has had to be expended. The additional £18,000 would
mitigate the shortfall and cover the overall budget requirement.

6.2

Health and safety of the pitch users. The additional funding would allow the
300mm separation layer to be maintained which would mitigate any future
risk

6.3

Overall scheme would be at risk of non-delivery if the funding for the
additional 1000 ton of topsoil is not approved.

7.
7.1

Consultation
The Planning application was subject to consultation.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Paul Harris – Tel: 01706 923269
paul.harris@rochdale.gov.uk
Faith Crompton – Tel: 01706 923253
faith.crompton@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 18

